

**Club of America, Pacific Northwest Region Inc.**

**PCA/PNWR Bylaws**

Reviewed and Approved by Vote of the Board of Directors – May 6,2019

I. NAME

II. OFFICES

III. PURPOSE

IV. MEMBERSHIP

V. FISCAL YEAR

VI. QUORUM

VII. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

VIII. OFFICERS

IX. ELECTIONS

X. MEETINGS

XI. CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

XII. COMMITTEES

XIII. STORE

XIV. INDEMNIFICATION

XV. WAIVER OF NOTICE

XVI. AMENDMENTS

XVII. CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

## I. NAME

The name of this Corporation shall be the Pacific Northwest Region of the Porsche Club of America (hereinafter referred to as "Regional Club" "Club", or "Corporation").

## II. OFFICES

The Regional Club shall continuously maintain in the state of Washington and within the boundaries set forth by Porsche Club of America, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "National Club"), a registered office and registered agent whose office is identical with such registered office, and may have other offices within and without the state.

## III. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Regional Club, as a regional organization actively affiliated with the National Club, shall be the furtherance and promotion of the general objectives of the National Club, as set forth in its Bylaws, and which consist of the enhancement of benefits of Porsche automobile ownership through social, technical and sporting activities, and such other purposes and objectives as may be consistent within the meaning of the Internal Revenue

Code of 1986, 501(c)(7), or any corresponding provision of any future Internal Revenue Service Code.

## IV. MEMBERSHIP

4.1. Qualifications. No person may hold membership in the Regional Club without being a member in good standing of the National Club. The classes of membership in the Regional Club shall be designated in accordance with, and shall correspond to, those of the National Club. All applications for regional membership shall be submitted to the membership chairman who shall determine if the applicant meets the qualifications for membership.

4.2. Regional Dues. A fee for regional operating expenses may be assessed as regional dues. The exact amount to be assessed will be set annually by the Regional Board. Such assessment shall be payable as determined by the Regional Board. Nonpayment of such regional dues will suspend a member's right to: vote in Regional elections and business; hold Regional Directorship; and receive the monthly Regional Publication. Such suspension shall cease upon payment of the Regional Dues by the member.

4.3. Voting Members. Members in good standing with both the National and Regional club, and with voting privileges according to the National club by-laws, are hereinafter referred to as "voting members".

## V. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be January 1 through December 31.

## VI. QUORUM

6.1. Board of Directors Meetings. A majority of the number of Directors currently serving shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that if less than a majority of such number of Board members are present at said meeting, a majority of the Board members present may adjourn the meeting at any time without further notice.

